
 1 

CITY OF ANOKA 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION 

MEETING MINUTES 
MARCH 10, 2016 

 
Call to Order:  Chairperson Kelly called the EDC meeting to order at 7:30 a.m. at Anoka 
City Hall, 2015 First Avenue North in the City of Anoka. 
 
Roll Call:  EDC Members present were:  Tracy Kelly, Gary Fahnhorst, Andy Peterson, 
Tom Redmann, and Kelsey Swokowski.  EDC members absent were: Jerry Cotton, Dr. 
Gene Dvoracek, Jason Peters, and Jessica Thunder. Staff present: City Manager Greg 
Lee. 
 
Approval of Minutes:  MOTION BY COMMISSIONER FAHNHORST, SECONDED 
BY COMMISSIONER KELSEY SWOKOWSKI, TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF 
THE JANUARY 14, 2016 AND FEBRUARY 11, 2016 EDC MEETINGS, AS 
PRESENTED.  MOTION CARRIED.  
 
OLD BUSINESS: 
 
Projects Update:  Mr. Lee noted that a proposal was brought forward from Riverplace 
Counseling Center at the February 16th City Council Worksession regarding a purchase 
of property and provided details.  He stated that additional information on the intent of 
the river walk can be found on the City website.  He noted that this would be a major step 
towards that goal to create the river walk and open the views as people come across the 
bridge from Champlin into Anoka.  He stated that the approvals for the property along 
Highway 10 where Riverplace intends to move, specifically rezoning and review of the 
site plan, would occur in April and the final purchase agreement would go before the City 
Council in May. 
 
Chairperson Kelly noted that QCTV has a program titled News and Views and advised 
that there is a current segment in which Councilmember Weaver provides additional 
information. 
 
Mr. Lee noted that he would provide an email link to the program to the Commission 
following the meeting today.  He stated that staff is still working with Graco in attempt to 
purchase a portion of their property to provide access from Bunker Lake Boulevard to the 
City owned site.  He noted that at this time it appears Graco is unwilling to sell but 
advised that staff is continuing negotiations.  
 
Chairperson Kelly asked if there is any update on the future relocation of the City owned 
liquor store. 
 
Mr. Lee stated that the City Council will discuss that item on their meeting on March 21st.  
He noted that originally the intent had been to relocate to the previous Vineyard but the 
market study had shown that site to be unfavorable because of the competition with 



 2 

Coborn’s in Ramsey.  He stated that the market study has shown site at 4th Avenue and 
Pleasant as the most desirable site.  He noted that the meeting the Council will discuss 
whether they agree with that statement and location and whether they would like to 
reserve that site for the relocation.   
 
Chairperson Kelly stated that he was actually referring to the activity at the other liquor 
store. 
 
Mr. Lee noted that in regard to the east liquor store the City is working with the property 
owner to the west and has a concept to enter into the property to complete a phase two 
environmental analysis of that site.  He noted that there will need to be quite a few drill 
holes and therefore the attorneys for both parties are working to draft an agreement for 
the restoration that would need to be done after the drilling.  He explained that the City 
wants to ensure that due diligence is followed before purchasing the site.  He noted that if 
the City does purchase the site the existing building would be razed and the site would be 
paved to provide additional parking and then building would then be expanded in the next 
two years. 
 
City of Anoka Marketing – Development Opportunities Booklet Update: Mr. Lee stated 
that the current booklet was provided in the packet and noted that staff is in the process of 
updating the booklet.  He asked for any input or comments, noting that the information 
will move forward to the City Council on March 21st at their worksession in order to gain 
their input.  He briefly reviewed the sites and information found in the booklet, noting 
that the numbering will be updated.   
 
Commissioner Fahnhorst asked how much control the City would have once the 
properties are zoned for the intended use. 
 
Mr. Lee replied that if the property is privately owned and zoned correctly, the City 
would not have much control but noted that if the City owns the property the City would 
have all the control in whether they would want that type of development in that location.   
 
Chairperson Kelly stated that the City of Ramsey has put a lot of effort into development 
surrounding their rail station and noted that it would be helpful to know how many 
people are utilizing that station.  He noted that the site near the rail station in Anoka could 
be considered a premium location in the next ten years. 
 
Mr. Lee stated that the planning staff is beginning discussions with the Ramsey staff in 
order to determine their vacancy rates and gather additional information related to that 
activity.  He continued to briefly summarize the properties and information included in 
the booklet.  He provided additional details on the parking ramp near the rail station.  He 
referenced the site that will be discussed by the Council at their upcoming worksession to 
determine if they would like to reserve that site for a future liquor store.   
 
Commissioner Peterson referenced Pleasant and Ferry and asked if that would be 
considered for a liquor store, noting that Ferry has a much higher traffic count than 4th.  



 3 

He acknowledged that the site is not owned by the City at this time but access would be 
better. 
 
Mr. Lee stated that the City does own two sites on Ferry near Pleasant.  He was unsure if 
the market study reviewed those locations but noted that he would review that possibility 
as he agreed that the roadway has a much higher traffic count.  He noted that MnDOT has 
started a study to determine if a grade separation could be done at the rail crossing at 
Ferry Street and advised that MnDOT is already asking questions about the City owned 
properties in that area, noting that perhaps the plan would be to move east which could 
impact the eastern portion of those properties.  He stated that the Ferry Street rail crossing 
is probably the busiest and most dangerous at grade rail crossing in the State, noting that 
he was unaware of any other two lane roadway in the State, which has a daily traffic 
count that exceeds 21,000 vehicles.  He acknowledged that it will be difficult and 
expensive.  He continued to review properties and information in the current booklet.   
 
Commissioner Fahnhorst asked if the parks receive a lot of use and whether a study has 
been done to determine use. 
 
Mr. Lee stated that he would be interested to know that information as well.  He stated 
that there is some use of Rudy Johnson park by the School District but noted that there 
will have to be a conversation to determine how the District would adjust if that park is 
relocated.  He continued to review the properties and information included in the current 
booklet.  He provided an update on the amount of presales received for a proposed 
housing development.   
 
Commissioner Peterson referenced the available sites near the golf course and asked if 
those could be marketed to a developer as a package to ensure consistent development of 
those lots.   
 
Mr. Lee stated that in a perfect situation it would be ideal for one developer to purchase 
those lots and create a master plan.  He noted that another site was just added with the 
purchase of the Connexus tower site.  He stated that the goal with the booklet is to show 
developers that the City is ready and prepared with the information necessary for 
developers to determine what they could do with the site. 
 
Commissioner Redmann referenced site 21, which houses the equipment to manage the 
golf course and asked if they need that big of a building. 
 
Mr. Lee noted that the building would be relocated and the new building would be 
smaller.  He stated that there is a site plan that has been created and noted that the next 
step would be to develop the construction plans for the relocated building.  He noted that 
this would be similar to the relocated public works building, where plans will be ready so 
that the building can be relocated when a developer is ready.  He stated that he may ask a 
former employee to work with him as a consultant in order to provide background 
information on prior land deals that the City had made in order to acquire that knowledge.  
He stated that HOM Furniture is looking to lease part of their building to a medical sales 



 4 

collection agency that will employ about 150 people.  He noted that the City owns a lot to 
the east of that building that HOM Furniture is looking to purchase to provide temporary 
parking to that user while they ultimately expand and reconfigure their building.  He 
continued to review the properties and information included in the marketing booklet.   
 
Commissioner Fahnhorst asked how the land acquisitions have been made over time, 
whether that was an intent or whether they occurred because of circumstances that arose. 
 
Mr. Lee stated that he does not have the full knowledge of how the City came to own this 
amount of property but provided an example of the Conexus tower site that was needed 
for one item but then can be sold.  He stated that this City Council is very supportive in 
the marketing and sale of these properties.   
 
Commissioner Peterson referenced Bonnell Park, which was previously utilized by the 
school and asked if that park is regularly used. 
 
Commissioner Redmann provided background information noting that the park was 
originally used for the two middle schools for physical education space but use decreased 
and there is now an antiquated irrigation system. 
 
Mr. Lee stated that Bonnell Field will be torn up in the next month or so to install a 72 
inch storm water pipe under the property.  He stated that the site will be lowered down 
two feet to encourage water to drain into the new pipe.  He stated that the area will also 
act as an overflow area for large storm water events that will eventually drain into the 
large pipe.  He noted that a new irrigation system and fields will ultimately be 
constructed.  He stated that originally the agreement was for the School District to install 
and maintain the irrigation system but once that use stopped the condition deteriorated.  
He explained that because the pipe needed to be installed the City agreed to install a new 
irrigation system with this construction and in essence the clock will be reset on the 
agreement.  He stated that this will handle a lot of the water that is traveling to Goodrich 
Field but noted that this will not be the ultimate fix for that drainage problem as another 
fix will be needed in the future to fully resolve the issue at Goodrich Field.    
 
NEW BUSINESS:  
 
Hiring a Deputy Community Development Director:  Mr. Lee reported that the City is in 
the process of hiring a Deputy Community Development Director, noting that the 
employee would hold the “deputy” title for one year as there is currently a Planning 
Director.  He noted that after that one year period the employee would hold the title of 
Community Development Director.  He advised that interviews will begin today for the 
position and hoped to have the hiring process complete in the next one to two months.  
He stated that there are 12 applicants, noting that a lot of the applicants are highly 
qualified.  
 
COMMUNICATIONS AND REPORTS:   
 



 5 

Marketing and Communications Updates: 
 

• Discover Anoka: Commissioner Peterson reported that the group met 
earlier this week with discussions beginning for the annual sidewalk sale 
that will be one week prior to the Anoka County Fair.  He stated that the 
group also discussed Diva Days, updates to the website and whether the 
group would like to add marketing to the website.  He stated that 
opportunities to advertise in Riverfest were also discussed. 
 

• ABLA – March 1st Meeting: Mr. Lee stated that he was not present for the 
meeting but did include the executive update in the Commission packet. 

 
• Winterfest – Post Event Meeting February 26, 2016: Chairperson Kelly 

stated that the event was well attended and noted that there was a 
comment that additional activities should be added to cater to all the 
different age groups.   

 
• Anoka Enterprise Park Annual Meeting – March 16, 2016: Chairperson 

Kelly stated that Clark Palmer sent out an email asking for RSVP’s for the 
meeting, which will be held at Greenhaven around lunchtime.   

 
Mr. Lee noted that the agenda for the meeting was included in the 
Commission packet. 

 
MISCELLANEOUS:   
 
Discuss Next Agenda: April 14, 2016. 
 
Chairperson Kelly stated that a cablecast meeting will need to take place this year and 
asked that a proposed date be provided at the next meeting for discussion.  He noted that 
an item should be on the agenda that would be beneficial to the general public.  He asked 
Commissioners to bring suggestions for that type of agenda item to the next meeting.  He 
stated that he would also be interested in inviting Open to Business and the Anoka Area 
Chamber of Commerce to attend a meeting to provide a presentation and have a 
discussion in the future.  He noted that Open to Business provided a presentation one year 
ago and thought it would be beneficial to check in and see the progress that has been 
made during that year.   
 
Commissioner Peterson believed it would also be helpful to have a presentation on the 
available HRA funding as that is vital to economic development, noting that there are 
programs available for business development that are very attractive.  He believed that 
May would be a good month for the cablecast before the summer schedules come into 
play. 
 



 6 

Commissioner Fahnhorst stated that perhaps September would be a good month in order 
to provide additional time for the new Deputy Community Development Director to 
come up to speed. 
 
Mr. Lee noted that perhaps May might not be the best choice as that could possibly be the 
first month for the new Deputy Community Development Director. 
 
Chairperson Kelly agreed that waiting until fall would be a better idea.   
 
Commissioner Fahnhorst asked if TIF was still active. 
 
Mr. Lee stated that perhaps it would be helpful for Ms. Yager to attend a meeting and 
provide a presentation on TIF activity.  He noted that perhaps that would be a good idea 
for an agenda item for the cablecast meeting. 
 
Chairperson Kelly noted that the annual volunteer appreciation dinner will be held on 
April 14th. 
 
Adjournment:  The meeting was adjourned upon a motion by Commissioner Redmann, a 
second by Commissioner Peterson, and a unanimous vote of those present at 9:05 a.m. 
 
Amanda Staple, TimeSaver Off Site Secretarial, Inc. 


